
ABABABAB    
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES 
 

MONDAY 22 MARCH 2010 
7.00 PM 
 

Forli Room - Town Hall 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declaration of Interest 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must also 
declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any items 
under consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

1 - 4 

4. Responses to Recommendations Made by the Commission 
 

5 - 10 

 An update on recommendations made at the last meeting. 
 

 

OPERATIONAL ITEMS 
 
5. Play Provision 

 
11 - 20 

 To scrutinise the provision of play facilities in rural areas. 
 

 

STRATEGIC ITEMS 
 
6. Business, Employment and Training 

 
21 - 24 

 To scrutinise Council actions to provide and enhance business, employment 
and training opportunities in rural areas. 
 

 

7. Forward Plan 
 

25 - 26 

8. Date of the next Meeting 
 

 

 To be confirmed. 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Alana Hair on 01733 452276 as soon as possible. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: D Over (Chairman), G Nawaz (Vice-Chairman), M Collins, R Dobbs, D Harrington, 
B Rush and W Trueman 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: L Gilbert, J A Fox, D Fower and Daynes 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Alana HairAlex Daynes on telephone 
01733 452276 or by email – alana.hair@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
  
 



ABABABAB    
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities held at the 
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall  

on 25 January 2010 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
Councillors D Over (Chairman), G Nawaz (Vice-Chairman), M Collins, R Dobbs, 
D Harrington, B Rush and W Trueman 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT: 
 
Alex Daynes, Senior Governance Officer 
Mike Heath, Commercial Services Director 
Chris Fisher, Head of Service Children and Families (0-13) 
Charlotte Palmer, Climate Change Team Manager 
Israr Ahmed, Contracts Legal Executive 
Alana Hair, Governance Officer 
 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 
No apologies were received. 
 

2. Declaration of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were given. 
 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2009 were approved as a true and 
accurate record. 
 

4. Recommendations  
 
Members received the responses to recommendations from the meeting held on 23 
November 2009. 
 
Members reported that it was good to see the inclusion of electric bikes in the Rural Area 
Travelchoice Action Plan.  Members reported that following the last meeting, Willow Drove 
was being investigated for designation as a ‘quite lane’.  It was agreed that this was a step 
forward in addressing the issues and would provide a more rural feel for the area. 
 
Members reported that the proposed 20 mph speed limit in school areas may be 
implemented across the whole of Peterborough.  The matter would go through a statutory 
public consultation process before being implemented. 
 
Members agreed that the Travel Choice action plan showed good medium to long term 
initiatives and the Commission would expect to see results after 18 months, 2 years and 5 
years. 
 

1



5. Children's and Youth Centre provision  
 
The commission received a report on how Children’s Services were being transformed and 
the impact that new ways of working and delivering services would have on children and 
young people in rural communities in Peterborough. The commission was requested to: 
 

1. Scrutinise the progress in developing services for children, young people and families 
in rural areas. 

2. Make further recommendations to develop these services. 
 
Questions were raised and responses given including: 

• Children’s Centres were staffed with appropriately qualified professionals in all 
areas. 

• The Council is determined to make the centres a success and the take up of 
services exceeds the national average. 

• The centres are always evolving and the Council is learning from the process; the 
core business takes about 18 months to get up and running. 

• For older children, schools can refer children for 1 to 1 support, and provide key 
workers for children aged 13 – 18 years. 

• Extended schools provide care to allow working parents to work, with the service 
being shared between schools during non term times. 

• Extended schools are managed in a number of ways, including by school 
governors, the local authority and voluntary organisations. 

• Currently 94% of schools are extended schools, with the target of 100% of schools 
being extended schools by September 2010.  All schools in the rural areas are 
extended schools. 

 
The Head of Service, Children and Families (0-13) agreed to report back to the Commission 
as to whether the Key Stage 2 figures outlined in the report related to which schools the 
children attended, or where they lived. 
 
The commission AGREED the following: 
 

1. To note the report. 
2. To receive a further breakdown of performance figures to include whether children 

living in urban areas attending rural schools tend to perform better than urban 
children attending urban. 

 
 

6. Climate Change and Rural Areas  
 
Members received a report on outlining the current and future actions that could be 
undertaken to address the impacts Climate Change may have upon the rural communities of 
Peterborough.  The commission was requested to: 
 

1. Scrutinise the options the current actions of the Council. 
2. Provide recommendations for future initiatives. 

 
Questions were raised and responses given including: 

• Car Share Peterborough was a local car sharing service that was being managed 
by Travelchoice. 

• The number of energy monitoring devices being provided for loan had been 
doubled due to their popularity.  The forthcoming Werrington community challenge 
would award prizes to the households saving the most energy. 

• Hand held thermal imaging cameras were not good for use in the spring and 
summer months as a certain temperature was required for them to work. 

2



• Peterborough Environment City Trust was to offer electricity monitoring devices to 
the business sector as part of a new initiative. 

 
The commission AGREED the following: 
 

1. Recommend that the Climate Change team begin a heat loss study in at least three 
(3) rural areas / parish councils with work to be carried out before spring. 

2. Recommend that the Climate Change Team roll out a description to other parish 
councils of what Glinton has been doing. 

3. Recommend that the Climate Change team notifies other rural schools of the work 
undertaken by John Clare school with two solar panels and woodchip boiler system. 

4. Recommend that the Climate Change team investigate a ‘barrier down, engine off’ 
initiative at railway crossings in rural areas. 

 
7. Forward Plan  

 
The commission received the latest version of the Forward Plan and was asked to identify 
any items that the committee wished to consider at a future meeting. 
 
Members identified the Culture Trust, the Site Allocations, Children’s LSP Platform, 
Surrender of lease (what is it?) as items to include in the Work Program. 
 

8. Work Program  
 
The commission reviewed the current work programme and agreed the future agenda plans. 
 

9. Date of the next Meeting  
 
The next meeting would be held on 22 March 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
7.00  - 8.00 pm 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 4 

22 March 2020 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Report Author – Alana Hair, Governance Officer 
Contact Details – (01733) 452276 or email alana.hair@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS MADE BY THE COMMISSION 
 

1. PURPOSE 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Commission of the responses to recommendations 
made at previous meetings. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Commission consider the responses to the recommendations made and agree if, and 
how, the implementation of the recommendations will be monitored. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 During the Commission’s meeting on 25 January 2010, a number of recommendations were 
made following consideration of reports on Children’s and Youth Centre Provision, and Climate 
Change – Rural Actions. 
 

3.2 For the information of the Commission, an update on the Commission’s recommendations in 
relation to the Traffic Mitigation item considered at its meeting on 23 November 2009 is also 
included. 
 

3.3 The recommendations were subsequently submitted to the Traffic Manager and Cabinet 
Member for Neighbourhoods, the Head of Service Children and Families (0-13) and the Climate 
Change Team Manager, with a request that responses were received by 11 March 2010.   
 

3.4 A copy of the recommendations made and the responses are attached at Appendix 1. 
 

4. KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 The Committee is asked to consider the responses and agree if, and how, the implementation 
of the recommendations will be monitored. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 Any implications are contained within the individual responses to the recommendations. 
 

6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

 Minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities held on 25 January 
2010. 
 

7. APPENDICES 
 

 Appendix 1, Responses To Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities Recommendations,  
25 January 2010. 

 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\0\6\AI00003601\100125ResponsestoRecommendations1.doc 

SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES 
RESPONSES TO RECOMMENDATIONS 25 JANUARY 2010 
 

Item Recommendations Response Requested by 11 March 2010 

Children’s and Youth Centre 
Provision 

To receive a further breakdown of performance figures to include 
whether children living in urban areas attending rural schools tend 
to perform better than urban children attending urban schools. 

Refer to Appendix 2. 

Climate Change and Rural 
Areas 

1. Recommend that the Climate Change team begin a heat 
loss study in at least three (3) rural areas / parish councils 
with work to be carried out before spring. 

2. Recommend that the Climate Change Team roll out a 
description to other parish councils of what Glinton has been 
doing. 

3. Recommend that the Climate Change team notifies other 
rural schools of the work undertaken by John Clare school 
with two solar panels and woodchip boiler system. 

4. Recommend that the Climate Change team investigate a 
‘barrier down, engine off’ initiative at railway crossings in 
rural areas. 

Update from the Climate Change team: 

1. The thermal handgun required to undertake the work 
has been purchased and staff have recently undergone 
training in its proper use.  Engagement with Glinton and 
Peakirk Green to start surveying these areas has 
begun.  The Parish Council will be borrowing the 
handgun to undertake the work and will also receive 
extensive training.  The work has been found to be 
more complex and involved than initially believed, and 
the last recommended surveying date is April 7th. Once 
the work has been completed in Glinton, the 
programme will be rolled out through the winter of 
2010/11 in other rural villages that are interested in 
participating. 

2.  Unfortunately Glinton was unsuccessful in its bid for 
funding through the Low Carbon Communities scheme.  
The Climate Change Team will work with Glinton Parish 
Council on preparing documentation to promote its 
work to other Parish Councils. 

3. A Carbon Reduction in Schools event will be taking 
place on 25th March which will include as case studies 
the work of John Clare school and others, for example 
Newborough and Orton Wistow, which have climate 
friendly initiatives.  

Traffic Mitigation 
At its meeting on 23 November 2009, the Commission 
recommended that the Traffic Manager and Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhoods, Housing and Community Development impose a 

Peter Tebb, Traffic Manager has provided the following 
update: 
 

7



Appendix 1 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\0\6\AI00003601\100125ResponsestoRecommendations1.doc 

Item Recommendations Response Requested by 11 March 2010 

20mph speed limit outside rural Primary Schools ahead of receipt of 
the Government’s Road Safety Strategy 2020. 
 
At its meeting on 25 January 2010 the Commission heard that this 
may be rolled out across Peterborough as a whole. 

Initial investigations in to where the proposed zones 
would start and finish have been undertaken. 
 
It is hoped that letters of informal consultation will be 
issued to the Parish Councils, Schools and Ward 
Councillors & police later this month before proceeding 
to the statutory consultation process. 
 
The funding to undertake such works has been 
identified through next year’s Safer Journeys to school 
budget as part of the capital programme of works. 
 
Basic speed surveys are also being undertaken at 
present to determine base line data for comparison 
against post implementation data – for those speed 
limits that go ahead. 
 
It would be realistic to expect that that any speed limit 
changes would be implemented towards the end of 
June. 

 

8



Appendix 2 

Comparison of achievements of young  people going to Arthur Mellows. 
The table below describes the results of pupil’s results in Arthur Mellows in relation to where they are living. It is difficult to draw any 
conclusions from the results because of the variations between wards and the small size of the cohort. The columns identify the number of 
young people from each ward and what percentage achieved 5 or more A-Cs 
% of pupils at the end of Key Stage 4 achieving 5+A*-C (and equivalent) including English and maths GCSEs  

 2006  2007  2008  2009   

 cohort % cohort % cohort % cohort %  

Peterborough - ALL  39%  38%  37%  41%  

AMVC - ALL  57%  57%  50%  63%  

Barnack 14 71% 16 63% 20 50% 18 56%  

Bretton North 5 40% 1 0% 5 60% 1 100%  

Central     1 0% 2 0%  

Dogsthorpe 2 100% 1 0% 2 0%    

East 4 50% 2 50% 2 0% 2 50%  

Eye and Thorney 34 50% 35 49% 32 38% 36 78%  

Fletton   2 50%   3 67%  

Glinton and Wittering 65 58% 47 55% 54 56% 53 66%  

Newborough 26 42% 26 46% 25 60% 33 55%  

North     1 100%    

Northborough 13 62% 17 71% 18 56% 16 44%  

Orton Longueville 1 100% 2 50%   1 100%  

Orton Waterville     1 0%    

Orton with Hampton 1 100%     1 100%  

Park          

Paston 7 43% 7 71% 5 60% 5 20%  

Ravensthorpe 1 0%        

Stanground Central 2 0%     1 0%  

Walton 3 67% 4 50% 1 100% 6 83%  

Werrington North 38 71% 48 58% 42 45% 29 62%  

Werrington South 13 54% 11 82% 17 65% 12 75%  

Out of Area 3 33% 8 63% 8 38% 5 100%  

 

9



1
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES  

Agenda Item No. 5 

 
22 March 2010 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Commercial Services Director 
 
Report Author – David Denson, Head of Operations, City Services 
Contact Details - 425309 
 

PROVISION OF FORMAL PLAY AND RECREATION FACILITIES IN RURAL AREAS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To allow Members the opportunity to scrutinise the provision of play in rural areas. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1 That the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities scrutinises the current provision of play 
in rural areas and makes appropriate recommendations. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL AREA 
AGREEMENT 
 

3.1 Children’s play helps make Peterborough a better place in which to learn and work and 
supports the agenda for learning and ensuring that children are safe.  Play areas can create 
a vibrant local centre which is attractive and is expected to be visited by pedestrians from 
the local catchment area rather than individuals using private transport.  The vision of the 
cities play strategy produced in March 2007 is: 
 

“The health and well being of Peterborough’s children and young people will 
be improved by imaginative and dynamic play provision and management of 
spaces and opportunities for play”. 

 
3.2 The Peterborough Play Partnership was developed in 2007 to progress the outcomes and 

actions arising from the play strategy.  The Play Partnership has been aligned with the 
Greater Peterborough Partnership (GPP) who chairs the partnership. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 In 2003 Peterborough was found to have an oversupply of play facilities in comparison 
with other similar Authorities.  However, at that time, only 5% of play facilities met National 
Playing Fields Association (NPFA) minimum standards.  At that time there were 330 
designated play areas within Peterborough.  It is fair to say that the arrangements in place 
at that time supported quantity over quality and many of the “doorstep” play areas were 
inadequate rather than safe.  As a result of this Members agreed that the Council would 
consolidate its play area provision to create high quality neighbourhood facilities which 
provide safe but stimulating opportunities for children. 
 

4.2 As of the date of this report Peterborough now has 180 designated play areas of which 
over 70% met the NPFA minimum standard.   
 

11



4.3 The play area improvement programme was identified as a corporate priority and was 
registered with the Programme and Project Management Team.  Funding for these 
schemes is provided through a number of sources;  the main funding being from Section 
106 developer contributions, Big Lottery Fund, the Department for Children, Schools and 
Families (DCSF) Playbuilder initiative and the Council’s capital resources.  Good 
examples of this are Ailsworth, Eye, Glinton and Wittering. 
 

4.4 Members have previously accepted the rationale for prioritising improvement works using 
the following criteria: 
 
§ Level and quality of provision in each Ward with NPFA standards 
§ Level of Risk Assessment for each site 
§ Play value of areas and comparison with recognised play standards 
§ Availability of resources 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The key issue for Members to consider is the on-going programme of improvements to 
existing play areas to ensure that all will reach the required Peterborough Play Strategy 
minimum standards in due course. 
 

5.2 That subject to continued support from the Councils’ capital programme, Big Lottery Fund, 
Section 106 funding and DCSF Playbuilder expand the number of facilities; play areas 
and wheeled sports facilities and MUGAs.  Locations to be decided as indicated in 
Section 3 above. 
 

5.3 Inspection and maintenance of existing play areas will continue in accordance with the 
existing schedule of maintenance which has been set according to use and budget 
together with guidance from the Council’s Insurance Section.  The recent introduction of 
BS EN 14974 Facilities for users of roller sports equipment has required the authority to 
inspect all wheeled sports facilities on a daily basis, increasing budgetary pressures. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 This report does not have any specific financial or legal implications in respect of existing 
facilities as they are maintained within defined budget and inspection and maintenance is 
carried out by or under the supervision of employees qualified in this area. 
 

6.2 New play areas and new MUGAs are funded from the sources as set out in paragraph 3.4 
above. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 Consultation with community groups, Parish Councils, Ward Members and other 
Departments is an important aspect of the improvement programme, ensuring that all 
interested parties are kept appraised of progress.  Each new play area will be developed 
with community consultation, including involvement of young people as appropriate. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 Officers will continue with the programme of inspections, maintenance and installation of 
new facilities in accordance with the established principles.  The next report will be 
produced in early 2011 unless a request is made to produce an update earlier.  By 
working with the rural communities we explore and expand on the grant opportunities that 
may be available. 
 

12



 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

9.1 Report to Community Well Being Policy Overview Committee dated 15 February 2007. 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 Appendix A identifies the play areas within each Parish area and provides a brief 
description of the facility and its overall condition.  Those play areas marked “amber” or 
“green” are not considered to require any major work to be undertaken within the next 
seven or ten years respectively.  The facilities marked “red” will, over the next five years, 
require to be either refurbished or removed. 
 
 

 

13



 
APPENDIX A 

PLAY PROVISION IN RURAL AREAS 
 
 

 2007 Report 2009 
   

BARNACK WARD 

There are 3 play areas maintained by the City Council in this ward.  NPFA minimum 
standards indicate that the level of provision should be in the region of 5 equipped 
play areas although this is difficult to achieve with the rural nature of the Ward.  
The 3 play areas are located in the larger villages.  The ward was ranked eighth in 
the priority ranking.   

      

Bainton Parish Play Area   

The play value score is good and the risk assessment score is reasonable for an area of 
this size.  The size of the play area limits the scope for future improvements at this site. 
The recent improvements at this site utilised the space and no further improvements are 
needed in the immediate future. 
 

 
GREEN 
 
Whizzer, Spring platform, Spring see saw, 
Balance beam & stepping posts, Multiplay 
unit, Junior swings. 

      

Helpston Dual Use   

The Game time multiplay unit has a number of timbers which are in poor condition, 
replacement parts for this unit are no longer available and the units’ age means that the 
condition of the unit needs monitoring and replacement in the immediate future will be 
necessary.  Minor modifications to exposed fixings would help reduce the risk associated 
with the unit.  Play value is reasonable for a NEAP the score being of 36. 
 

AMBER 
 
Hags junior multiplay, Junior swings, Wooden 
climbing horse, Goal posts, Daisy springy, 
Aeroplane springy, Assault course, Netball 
post, Wooden shelter, MUGA 

   

1
4



Ufford Parish Playing 
Field 

The site scored moderately well for play value although for a site which is potentially a 
NEAP the score was poor.  The site is the only public play area in the village and should 
be developed along the lines of the NEAP Standard .The site could be developed to offer 
far more play opportunities to a wide range of users for the whole of the village.  The 
existing basketball goal needs the backboard replacing and the ground below needs to be 
upgraded to include an area of hard standing. The swing needs a safer surface installed 
below to meet EN1177 standards. There is a scope to provide lots of additional 
equipment; consultation is needed with the Parish Council to identify priorities. The site is 
not fenced and the introduction of a fence would reduce the risks associated with dog 
fouling and agricultural activities in the adjoining fields. The play area would benefit from 
having separate areas for younger preschool children and another specific area for older 
children with more demanding equipment. The access from the road to the equipment is 
poor and a casual footpath into the area would improve the opportunities for local people.     

AMBER 
 
 
 
To be reviewed 2010/11 
 
 
Adventure trail, junior swing, infant arch 
swing, netball posts and goal posts. 
 
 

   

GLINTON PARISH 
The level of provision in Glinton Ward is in line with NPFA minimum standards and 
the ward was ranked twelve in the priority ranking.   

   

Ailsworth Parish Council  

The risk assessment was moderate for this particular site. There are issues with the 
access into the play area these are largely due to the removal of the community buildings 
adjacent to the play area.  There is a very limited range of play equipment aimed at the 
youngest age group and play value is very poor.  If funding became available there is 
scope to develop play opportunities for a number of age groupings. Consultation is 
needed with the Parish Council to develop an appropriate action plan. 

GREEN 
 
Recently developed (August 09) Daisy 
springy, motorbike springy, set 4 swings, 
Grizzly multiplay, seesaw, roundabout, 
MUGA. 
 

   

Castor Parish Council  

The risk assessment score could be lowered by improving the site fencing.  The play 
value score was good at 37. The current size and layout of the site limit the improvements 
that could be made and the risk assessment was slightly higher than expected partly the 
result of limited circulation space and the uneven ground within the play area. 
Improvements to the levels within the play area could be carried out through the play 
maintenance program. There were some minor repairs to the picnic seats and the trim 
trail eye bolt inserts and steel cable. 

GREEN 
 
 
Infant multiplay unit, Junior multiplay unit, 
Assault course, Set of infant & junior swings, 
Car springy, Puffin springy, Cone climber 
 

   

1
5



Crispins  - Ashburn 
Close 

This play area score for risk assessment was high for an area with very limited play 
opportunities.  The timber climber has a number of limb traps and has no safer surfacing 
below and should be removed.  The work has been carried out through the play 
maintenance programme.  The play area as a whole should be redesigned as a Local 
Area for Play which would involve removing the 3 remaining spring toys and fencing in the 
area in order to provide a more secure area for toddlers play. 
 

RED 

 

Review 2010/2011 

   

Glinton Parish Playing 
Field 

The play value score for this area was reasonable but the play area serves the whole of 
the village and would benefit from additional play equipment. There is very limited 
equipment aimed at younger children.  The risk assessment score was also reasonable 
but the igloo climber does not meet European standards and would be better replaced 
with a suitable alternative this would help improve the risk assessment. The cradle swings 
require safer surfacing.  This work would significantly reduce the risk on this site. 
 

 
GREEN 
 
Refurbished as a Playbuilder May 09 - Infant 
swings, Talk tubes, Springy motorbike, 
Embankment slide, Netball posts, Football 
goals, Playhouse, Junior multiplay, Daisy 
springy, Supanova, Seesaw, Cable runway, 
Timbertangle, Playdale adventure trail, Cone 
climber, Hex swings, BMX track 

   

Clarendon Way 
The play value score was reasonable for a localised facility aimed at younger children, 
risk assessment was low but could be improved upon by installing an information sign. 
Minor work needed to spring toy seat and damaged fence slat. 
 
 

 
AMBER 
 
Dog springy, Multiplay unit 
 
Section 106 monies may be available to 
refurbish this play area 

   

NEWBOROUGH WARD The ward was rated fifteen in the priority rating.  The number of play areas meets 
the NPFA minimum standard.   

Newborough Playing 
Field      

The play value score for this site was relatively low for a play area that serves the whole 
village.  The risk assessment was low. The cradle swings do not have safer surfacing and 
this is something that should be considered as part of future improvements. .There are 
two distinct play areas  which are age specific the area aimed at older children should be 
fenced to reduce risk associated with dog fouling and also the close nature of the 
drainage ditch at one boundary of the playing field. 

AMBER 
 
Junior swings, Infant swings, Multiplay unit, 
Rotating post, Netball post, Springy seesaw, 
Car springy, Goal posts. 
 

   

1
6



Peakirk Parish Council   

The risk assessment for this play area was relatively low the introduction of dog proof 
fencing would significantly help to reduce risk.  One arch swing does not conform to 
EN1176 and should be removed.  The second set of swings requires modifications and 
safer surfacing this work should be carried out as a matter of urgency through the play 
maintenance programme.  This play area provides play opportunities for the whole of the 
village and accordingly the play value score should be much higher than it is.  Additional 
fencing and play equipment would help improve opportunities for local residents. 
 

GREEN 
 
CHESTNUT CLOSE - Embankment slide, 
Balance beams, Junior swings, Shark springy, 
Apple springy, Infant swings, Climbing cone 
 

   

Quorn Close 

The risk assessment was low; the gaps in the dog proof fencing should be gapped up 
when funding can be identified. There are no obvious division of age groupings on site the 
multiplay is appropriate for older children, although the size and nature of the site would 
appear to be more appropriate for younger children. When consideration is next given to 
major improvements to the site the age specifics of the existing equipment should be 
considered.      

AMBER 
 
 
Seesaw, Horse springy, Spinning pole, 
Springy playform, Junior multiplay. 

   

NORTHBOROUGH 
PARISH 

The level of provision is in line with the NPFA’s minimum standard and the priority 
ranking for the Ward was thirteenth   

   

Barn Close (Maxey)   

This play area serves the whole of the village and the play value score was relatively 
poor.  The risk assessment score was unacceptably high and urgent work has been 
carried out to improve the situation.  The igloo climber and climbing logs have no safer 
surfacing, the life expectancy of the logs is very short and they have been removed.  The 
igloo climber requires safer surfacing; however it would be better to replace both items 
with a modern equivalent with greater play value.  The roundabout does not conform to 
standards and needs to be replaced with a modern alternative. 
 

GREEN 
 
 
Set of 2 infant & junior swings, Hags whizzer, 
Climbing cone, Hags jeep, SMP see saw, 
SMP assault course, Hags activity ship, 
Springy turtle, Elephant slide. 

   

Northborough Parish 
Play Area 
 
 
 
 

There are two distinct areas at Northborough.  The play value of the site was reasonable.  
The risk assessment score was reasonable, the arch swing no longer conforms to 
EN1176 standards and should be replaced with an equivalent unit and safer surfacing.  
The junior swings require safer surfacing and the junior area should be fenced    
Additional equipment for older children would help offset the recent loss of the timber 
climber. There area also some remedial work required to the toddlers multiplay unit which 
could be carried out by the play maintenance team. 
 

 
GREEN 
 
Recently refurbished (Nov 08) Kompan 
multiplay unit, Elephant springy, Cradle 
swings, Kompan springy, Roundabout, 6 
Toadstools, 3 Activity stations, Igloo climbing 
frame, 2 seat rocker, Junior swings, 
Embankment slide, Teen shelter, Cyclone, 
Mobilus, Aerial runway, Goal posts. 

1
7



THORNEY /EYE WARD The ward was ranked seventeenth in the priority ranking.  The overall number of 
play areas is 8 which are more than the basic NPFA minimum requirement of 4.   

   

Ixworth Close, Eye 

The risk assessment score for this play area was very high.  The equipment is now dated 
and the items do not conform to the EN1176 standards. The equipment does not have 
any safer surfacing. The equipment should be replaced when individual items of 
equipment reach the end of there life. The play area should be upgraded gradually to 
meet the NPFA LEAP standard. 
 
 

 
RED 
 
Review in 2010/2011 - discussions with 
Parish Council whether to remove, other play 
areas could meet the demands of residents in 
this area, or refurbish  
 
Infant arch swing, Infant slide, Climbing frame  
-  No safety surfacing 

   

Little Close, Eye 

The play area at Little Close in Eye did not score very well for play value. The risk 
assessment score was low attention is needed to the multiplay unit including replacing 
blanking plugs and replacing rotten steps and worn steel cables. The levels around the 
kick about goal need making good and the timbers of the spring toy need minor work. 
Consideration needs to be given to providing fencing and additional equipment to raise 
the play value of this site. 

GREEN 
 
Junior swings, Infant swings, Springy toy, 
SMP Infant multiplay, Basketball net, Tortoise 
springy, Hags seesaw, Hags whizzer, Hags 
springy, hags spinner, SMP spinning bowl. 

   

Northam Close, Eye  

This site is very low key and does not meet LEAP standards.   The range of equipment 
has very limited play value and the play value is limited. The risk assessment was slightly 
higher than expected as the site lacks ancillary items such as fencing signage and the 
location of the play equipment in the centre of a turning circle is not ideal. 
 

AMBER 
 
Seesaw, Hags lion springy, Sutcliffe rotating 
pole, Sutcliffe spinning bowl 
 

   

Cleve Place, Eye 

  

 
AMBER 
 
This area contains a skate park and a play 
area and the open space is to be improved as 
a result of Big Lottery funding granted to the 
Eye Community Space Project 

   

1
8



Sandpit Road,Thorney   

The location of this play area is not good it is hidden at the rear of properties.  The risk 
assessment was very high, there are various remedial works required to the existing 
swing surface and the seesaw. The concrete slabs should be removed from the free fall 
zone of the swing unit as a matter of urgency. The play value score was poor and the risk 
assessment for an area with limited equipment was quite high.  General upgrading of the 
equipment range is needed to raise the standard of the play area. 

AMBER 
 
 
 
Wicksteed swings, Kompan seesaw 
 

   

Thorney Park(A) 

The central play area is for younger children and scored well for play value.  One of the 
two play structures does not meet EN1176 standards and has been subject to a number 
of acts of vandalism.  This unit is reaching the end of its serviceable life and needs to be 
replaced. The removal of this item of equipment would help to reduce the risk. There are 
minor remedial works to the surfaces in the play area which could be carried out through 
the play maintenance team. 

AMBER 
 
Infant swings, Wicksteed multiplay, Hags 
multiplay, Hags jeep, Roundabout, Hags 
seesaw 

   

Whitehills, Eye    
Chancery Lane 

The area scored low on play value and this was the result of having limited play 
equipment as the physical layout of the site restricts the equipment which could be 
provided. The risk assessment score was reasonable and the introduction of a dog proof 
fence and an information sign would help reduce the risk assessment score significantly. 
No major changes needed. The introduction of a small social play item for toddlers would 
help improve opportunities for a toddler which is the main focus of the area. 

AMBER 
 
 
Infant arch swing, Plane springy, Slide, 
Rotating post, Seesaw,  
 

   

WITTERING WARD 

The City Council has responsibility for only one play area in this ward.  The rural 
nature of the ward gives rise to specific needs with the distance between villages 
presenting difficulties with children having access to play facilities.  Ideally 
according to NPFA standards there should be 5 play areas located within the 
villages but small catchments numbers make this a less viable proposition to give a 
reasonable distribution of play opportunities within walking distance from home.   

   

Wittering Parish Play 
Area 

The site scored poorly for play value and the risk assessment indicated that the 
introduction of ancillary items particularly dog proof fencing would help reduce the risk.  
Additional items of equipment would also help to improve play value and improve 
opportunities for younger children. 
 
 

GREEN 
 
This play area was refurbished in Spring 2009 
as a Play builder project,  basket swing, 
Cyclone, Gyrospiral, Multiplay Unit, Adventure 
trail, Rodeo board, Cone climber, Nexus 
freeride, Toddler swings, Bexy multiplay, 
Spinning bowl, Rocker, Lion springy.  The 
whole play area has now been fenced. 

 

1
9



20

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 

Agenda Item No. 6 

 
22 March 2010 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Operations  
 
Contact Officer(s) – Leonie McCarthy, Neighbourhood Manager - Citywide 
Contact Details – 01733 864308, leonie.mccarthy@peterborough.gov.uk  

 
Business, employment and training in rural areas 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To scrutinise Council actions to improve and enhance business, employment and training 

opportunities in rural areas. 
 

1.2 The Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities is looking at a forward vision for rural areas 
and trying to ascertain the current and possible future employment provision for the areas. 
 

1.3 In the past there has been focused targeted work in the City Centre and Urban areas.  The 
Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities wish to examine what work the Council is 
undertaking to address skills, employment, business and training opportunities in the Rural 
areas. 
 

1.4 Currently through consultation within the City Council, Opportunity Peterborough and Business 
Advice organisations, it appears that whilst skill, employment, business and training resources 
are available across the City including the Rural areas, there is no targeted work or research 
currently being undertaken in this area. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 To request that the Rural Working Group form a sub group, facilitated by the North West 
Neighbourhood Development Officers, to look at Skills, Employment and Training for Rural 
Communities. Through this group developing a targeted action plan with specified outcomes. 
This action plan to have a standing agenda item at the Rural Working Group meetings for 
monitoring purposes. 
 

2.2 For North West 1 Neighbourhood Management Neighbourhood Development Officers to 
identify, map and record past, current and future employment and training opportunities 
including self employment and volunteering opportunities in the Rural areas. 
 

2.3 To seek opportunities to address the gaps identified in provision and produce a report and 
action plan on how to improve opportunities for employment in Rural areas (including “rural” 
skills). 
 

2.4 To work with Parish Councils and local residents to identify any visions, desires and thoughts 
on how their rural economy should look in terms of planning and development. 
 

2.5 To request that Neighbourhood Management for the North West Area undertake Employment 
and Training research and engagement activities for the Rural Communities. This work to 
include partner Business Development Agencies including Opportunity Peterborough, Business 
Link etc and EEDA as part of their community action planning process and delivery. 
 

21



 
3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL AREA 

AGREEMENT 
 

3.1 Empowering Local Communities (SSC03) 
 

• To increase the number of people who feel they can influence decisions in their local 
area by being engaged in a Rural Vision regarding Employment and Training 
opportunities 

• Increasing the number of people engaged in Volunteering Opportunities through work 
with the Neighbourhood Management Team to identify Volunteering Opportunities in the 
Rural Areas and support those agencies to work with local people. 

 
Increasing Economic Prosperity (GO01) 
 

• Increasing the overall employment rate in Rural Areas by identifying employment 
opportunities 

• Increasing the average earnings of employees by assisting employers and employees to 
access training and development opportunities 

• Increasing VAT registration rate by ensuring that Business have support for start up and 
identifying those businesses that are not VAT registered 

 
Increasing the Use of Sustainable Transport (EC02) 
 

• Increasing the access to services and facilities by public transport, walking and cycling 
 

Improving Skills and Education (OI04) 
 

• Increase the working age population qualified to at least Level 2 or higher by working 
with employers increase skills and development through training provision within 
Peterborough. 

• Increase the working age population qualified to at least Level 4 or higher by ensuring 
access to training and development opportunities are made available 

 
Growing our Environmental Business Sector (EC03) 
 

• Increasing the number of Environmental Goods and Services sector companies by 
identifying opportunities for growth in the Rural Areas 

 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 A need to address future vision for Rural Economy was identified through the Scrutiny 
Committee for Rural Communities following a request for further exploration of the issue made 
by Cllr Over.  The importance of Rural economy was also recognised in the GPP Rural Working 
Group’s Vision and Strategy.  As yet, progress in this area is slow and it is unclear what the 
scope and role of business support in rural areas should be.  We know we have agriculture, self 
employment (working from home) and small scale industry, but we need to ascertain whether 
additional support, above and beyond that offered by business link and Opportunity 
Peterborough is required.  Significant investment has been made in rural economy support in 
our neighbouring districts through the Fens Adventurer Rural Development programme.   
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 The Commission need to consider that the proposed approach; including research, 
engagement and follow up action is appropriate to develop rural economy in Greater 
Peterborough. 
 

22



 
6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 Human resources, the Neighbourhood Development Workers would need to include this work 

as part of their activities in the NW1 area.  A request for support and officer time would need to 
be made to the Rural Working Group. 
 

The report focuses solely on the Rural areas identified in the Rural North (North & West 1 
Area). 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 Opportunity Peterborough 
Greater Peterborough Partnership 
NWES 
Neighbourhood Management Team 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 For the Scrutiny Committee to task the NW1 Neighbourhood Management Team with taking 
this issue forward and working with the Rural Working Group to develop an action plan to 
deliver the outcomes outlined above and any other identified need to achieve the outcomes 
above through consultation with Parishes, Rural Working Groups and residents in the Rural 
Areas. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

9.1 Rural Working Group – Rural Vision and Strategy. 
National Indicator Set for Peterborough’s Local Area Agreement (2008-11) 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 None. 
 

  

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

22 MARCH 2010 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Alana Hair, Governance Officer 
Contact Details – 01733 452276 or email alana.hair@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FORWARD PLAN – APRIL 2010 TO JULY 2010 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities outlining the content 

of the Council’s Forward Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan will be tabled at the meeting (at the time of publishing 
these papers the latest Forward Plan had not been published).  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan provides the Commission with the opportunity of considering 
whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to request further 
information. 
 

3.3 If the Commission wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 
 None. 
 
 

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Responses to Recommendations Made by the Commission
	Appendix 1 - Responses to Recommendations made at meeting on 25 January 2010
	Appendix 2

	5 Play Provision
	6 Business, Employment and Training
	7 Forward Plan

